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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,
rdWELCOME TO THE 23 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED

It has been my pleasure to once again highlight on the performance of Ashiana Ispat Limited. Ashiana continued to set new 
benchmarks despite the challenging economic environment. The year 2014-15 was another year for improvement, 
sustainable growth and operational efficiencies.

India's economy was in the midst of improvement showing signs of recovery with lower inflation. Ashiana managed to deliver 
the broad-based growth.

When we look at Ashiana today, it can be seen that it has been a year of great transition for the Company.

The Indian economy grew at a rate lower than the trend average of the last 10 years due to overhang of lower capital 
expenditure and investments, tight monetary policy and sluggish demand conditions in critical sectors such as automotive, 
infrastructure and construction. There are significant expectations of the new Government to pursue further economic 
reforms, investments in infrastructure and an inclusive growth agenda to revive the economy. Steel as a foundation industry 
will play a significant role in this journey and therefore it is very important for policy makers and the government to facilitate a 
robust supply side framework as an enabler for a vibrant steel industry in the country

I would like to quote a very motivational saying by Swami Vivekananda in this context:-

“Take up one idea. Make that one idea your life – think of it, dream of it and live on that idea. Let the brain, 
muscles, nerves, every part of your body, be full of that idea, and just leave every other idea alone. This is the 

way to success that is way great spiritual giants are produced”

Every day we ask ourselves how we can deliver greater value to our clients and shareholders and look for ways to help our 
clients take on a future of sustainable growth with timely delivery. You will be pleased to know, that your Company was 
recognized by industry, customers for excellence along many dimensions. 

Review of Performance

I am pleased to inform that Ashiana has recorded revenues of Rs. 29909.97 lacs. PBT grew to Rs. 292.80 lacs from Rs. 284.63 
lacs during the last fiscal year. The growth in revenues showed increase in demand for the Company's product.The 
Company's performance during the year was average. But, despite the challenges- both internal and external, the overall 
financial stability of the Company remains, however, strong,Through the conscious efforts and other ongoing improvement 
measures, I hope to revive our earlier growth performance in the medium term. Going forward, there is a tremendous potential 
for growth and improvement. I believe we have a promising year ahead of us in the near term, as an Industry.

As a responsible corporate citizen, Ashiana recognizes and fulfils its duty of serving to the interests of the society as well. The 
Company is committed to addressing the developmental needs and aspirations of the communities

Opportunity

Steel sector is the backbone of the Indian economy. Government is also providing certain measures to provide thrust to Indian 
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Steel sector. The infrastructure sector is the largest consumer of steel, because with the rapid increase in urban population, 
there is a need to build infrastructure facilities.Historically, steel has been one of the fastest growing commodities and this 
trend is likely to continue thereby auguring well for overall progress of the Industry.

Your Company is confident about the future given the integrated nature of its operations, its ideal location to cater to demand at 
present as well as domestic demand when it picks up, and the focus on continuous improvement leading to greater efficiency. 
Over the past few years, we have observed the progressive rise in demand. We focus on value addition at every stage of 
manufacture and also direct our efforts to high revenue generating markets.

Our People

Our employees are the mainstay of the organization. By their sheer dedication, commitment and hard-work, they have build a 
platform of security for the future. Our employees put in tremendous efforts at all levels that have helped in shaping and 
building Ashiana as a trustworthy name among customers. We look to the future with confidence that arises out of our actions 
and the achievements of our people, as we prepare to face the competitions and challenges of the World.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management, I would like to place on record your Company's sincere appreciation 
of the continuing patronage and support of all stakeholders, without which it will be impossible for the Company to scale new 
heights and achieve new levels. I would also like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the employees of the Company for their 
timeless commitment for enhancing the well-being of the Company. It is the unmatched support of the shareholders and 
employees that has helped Ashiana climbing the stairs of success.

Sd/-

(Naresh Chand)

Managing Director

DIN : 00004500
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rdNOTICE is hereby given that the 23  Annual General 
Meeting of the members of M/s. ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED 

thwill be held on  Monday, the 28   September, 2015 at 09.30 
A.M. at the registered office of the Company at A-1116, 
Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi-301019, District-
Alwar, Rajasthan to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Profit 
& Loss Account for the year ended on that date 
and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Puneet Jain 
(holding DIN – 00814312), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 139 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, 

, be and are 
hereby re-appointed as the Auditors of the 
Company to hold office from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting, at such 
remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of 
Directors and the Audit Committee, apart from 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses and 
taxes as applicable.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 4: Appointment of Mrs. Shruti Jain as an 
Independent Director for a term of five years 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, Mrs. 
Shruti Jain ( having DIN 07129355) , who was appointed as 
an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of 
Directors with effect from 20.03. 2015 and who holds office 
until the date of the AGM, in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member under 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his 
intention to propose Mrs. Shruti Jain as a candidate for the 
office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years 

M/s S. Singhal & Company, 
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Reg. No. 
001526C), E-127, Industrial Area,Bhiwadi-
301019 Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan) 

thcommencing from 20   March, 2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs.  Shruti Jain will not be 
liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 5 Appointment of Mr. Naman Jain as Director 
liable to retire by rotation

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Naman Jain (holding DIN 
–03436419), who was appointed by the Board as an 

thAdditional Director of the Company with effect from 14  
November, 2014, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing from a Member of the Company 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director (Category – Non-
Executive Promoter Director) of the Company liable to retire 
by rotation.”

Item No. 6  To approve the remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2016 and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any Statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactments(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), M/s Sanjay Kumar Garg & Co.,  Cost 
Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct the audit of the Cost records of the 
Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2016 be 
paid a remuneration of Rs-20,000 plus reimbursement of 
out of Pocket and other incidental expenses.  

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Ashiana Ispat Limited

Place: Bhiwadi

Date: May 30, 2015 Sd/-

Naresh Chand

Managing Director

DIN-00004500 

Notes:

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special 
Business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE ON POLL ON HIS / HER BEHALF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
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COMPANY. Pursuant to Section 105 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on 
behalf of not more than fifty members holding in 
aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the Company. Members holding more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall not 
act as a Proxy for any other Member. The instrument 
of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company, duly 
completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is 
annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on behalf of 
limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported 
by an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
ndof the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 22  

September, 2015 to Monday, 28th September, 2015 
(both days inclusive). The book closure dates have 
been fixed in consultation with the Stock Exchanges.

4. Members holding shares in demat form are hereby 
informed that the Company or its Registrar cannot act 
on any request received directly from the Members 
holding shares in demat form for any change of bank 
particulars. Such changes are to be intimated only to 
the Depository Participants of the Members. Members 
holding shares in demat form are requested to 
intimate any change in their address and / or bank 
mandate immediately to their Depository Participants.

5. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to intimate any change of address and / or 
bank mandate to M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 
/ Investor Service Department of the Company 
immediately.

6. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the 
Company, all Directors (except Mr. Naresh Chand, 
who has been appointed as the Managing Director for 

tha term of 5 years effective 25  January, 2011), retire 
every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting. As per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Independent Directors are appointed for a term up to 
five consecutive years and are not liable to retire by 
rotation. The relevant details of Directors seeking 
appointment / re-appointment under Item nos.  4 and 5 
of this Notice are provided at page nos. 10 of the 
Annual Report.

7. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made 
thereunder, companies can serve Annual Reports and 
other communications through electronic mode to 
those Members who have registered their email 
address either with the Company or with the 
Depository Participant(s). Members who have not 
registered their email address with the Company can 
now register the same by submitting a duly filled-in 'E-

communication Registration Form' available on the 
website of the Company www.ashianaispat.co.in to 
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited or Investor 
Service Department of the Company. Members 
holding shares in demat form are requested to 
register their email address with their Depository 
Participant(s) only. Members of the Company who 
have registered their email address are also entitled 
to receive such communication in physical form, upon 
request.

8. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance 
Slip are being sent in electronic mode to Members 
whose email address are registered with the 
Company or the Depository Participant(s), unless the 
Members have registered their request for the hard 
copy of the same. Physical copy of the Notice of AGM, 
Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent to 
those Members who have not registered their email 
address with the Company or Depository 
Participant(s). Members who have received the 
Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip in 
electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance 
Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the 
Registration Counter at the AGM.

9.  Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Clause 
35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is 
pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise 
their right to vote on the resolutions proposed to be 
passed at AGM by electronic means. The Members, 
whose names appear in the Register of Members / list 

stof Beneficial Owners as on Monday, 21  September, 
2015, i.e. the date prior to the commencement of book 
closure, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set 
forth in this Notice. The members may cast their votes 
on electronic voting system from place other than the 
venue of the meeting (remote e-voting). The remote 
e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on 
Thursday, 24th September, 2015 and will end at 5.00 

thp.m. on Sunday, 27  September, 2015. In addition, 
the facility for voting through electronic voting system 
shall also be made available at the AGM and the 
Members attending the AGM who have not cast their 
vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote at the 
AGM. The Company has appointed Mr. Birshankar & 
Co., Practising Company Secretary, to act as the 
Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in 
a fair and transparent manner. The Members desiring 
to vote through remote e-voting are requested to refer 
to the detailed procedure given hereinafter.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are 
as under:

(I) The voting period begins on 24th September, 2015 at 
9.00 A.M. and ends on 27th September, 2015 at 5.00 
P.M. During this period shareholders' of the Company, 
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holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record 
date) of 21st September, 2015, may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 
meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting 
website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and 
Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had 
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 
earlier voting of any company, then your existing 
password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then 
directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form will 
now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they 
are required to mandatorily enter their login password 
in the new password field. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat holders for 
voting for resolutions of any other company on which 
they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 

recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Ashiana Ispat 
Limited on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to 
the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish 
to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote 
on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii)You can also take out print of the voting done by you by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 
page.

(xviii)If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed 
password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves as Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form 
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia. 
com.

• After receiving the login details a compliance 
user should be created using the admin login 
and password. The Compliance user would be 
able to link the account(s) for which they wish to 
vote on.

• The list of accounts should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to 
cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and 
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 
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Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by 
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated their PAN with 
the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number which 
is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip 
indicated in the PAN field.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in 
dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 
account or in the company records in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded with the 
depository or company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

PAN

Dividend
Bank
Details
 OR 
Date
of Birth
(DOB)

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form



scrutinizer to verify the same.

(i) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 
become Member of the Company after dispatch of the 
Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 
may follow the same instructions as mentioned above 
for e-Voting.

(ii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-
voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

Registered office:

A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Inds. Area

Bhiwadi-301019, Alwar, Rajasthan

Place: Bhiwadi

Date: 30.05.2015

By Order of the Board

Sd/-

Naresh Chand

Managing Director

DIN-00004500

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company (the 
“Board”) at its meeting held on 20.03.2015, appointed Mrs. 
Shruti Jain as an additional director of the Company with 
effect from 20.03.2015  and she holds office until the date of 
the Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board also designated Mrs. Shruti Jain as an 
Independent Director within the meaning of Section 149 of 
Companies Act, 2013 for a term of 5 (five) years, not liable to 
retire by rotation, subject to shareholders approval.

The Company had received a notice in writing from a 
member along with a deposit of Rs 100,000 (Rupees One 
lakh only) proposing the candidature of Mrs. Shruti Jain for 
the office of Director of the Company.

Mrs. Shruti Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Shruti Jain is competent and 
well-experienced, and therefore her appointment as 
Independent Director is justified. In the opinion of the Board, 
Mrs. Shruti Jain fulfils the conditions specified in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under for her 
appointment as an Independent Director of the Company 
and Mrs. Shruti Jain is independent of the Management.

Copy of letter of appointment of Mrs. Shruti Jain as an 
Independent Director setting out terms and conditions 
would be available for inspection without any fee by the 
members at the registered office of the Company during 
10:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M. on all working days.

The Board considered that her continued association would 
be immense beneficial to the Company and is desirable to 
continue to avail services of Mrs. Shruti Jain as an 
Independent Director.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in 
relation to appointment of Mrs. Shruti Jain as an 
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders 
of the Company.

Mrs. Shruti Jain does not hold any Shares of the Company in 
her own name.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and 
their relatives, except Mrs. Shruti Jain, are concerned or 
interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. The 
Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item 
no. 4 for approval of the Members.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of this 
Resolution by ordinary resolution.

Item No. 5

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company (the 
“Board”) at its meeting held on November 14, 2014, 
appointed Mr. Naman Jain as an additional director of the 
Company with effect from 14.11.2014 and he holds office 
until the date of the Annual General Meeting, in terms of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company had received a notice in writing from a 
member along with a deposit of Rs 100,000 (Rupees One 
lakh only) proposing the candidature of Mr. Naman Jain for 
the office of Director of the Company liable to retire by 
rotation.

Mr. Naman Jain is not disqualified from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in 
relation to appointment of Mr. Naman Jain as a Director, 
liable to retire by rotation for the approval by the 
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Naman Jain holds 100000 Equity Shares of the 
Company in his own name.

Apart from Mr. Naman Jain, being the appointee, Mr. Neeraj 
Kumar Jain, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain being relative are 
related and deemed to be concerned or interested, financial 
or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of this 
Resolution by ordinary resolution.

Item No. 6

M/s Sanjay Kumar Garg & Co., Cost Accountants 
conducted the cost audit of the Company for the year 2013-
14. The Audit Committee at its meeting held on 30th May, 
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2014 has recommended for their appointment as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company to conduct the Cost Audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2014-15 at a remuneration of 
Rs- 20,000 plus out of Pocket and other incidental 
expenses.

The Board recommends the resolution for the appointment 
of M/s Sanjay Kumar Garg & Co, Cost Accountants for your 
approval for the financial year 2015-16 at a remuneration of 
Rs- 20,000 plus out of Pocket and other incidental 
expenses.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financial or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

(Seeking Appointment / Re-appointment)

Mr. Naman Jain [DIN-03436419]

Mr. Naman Jain, aged 28 years, is 
. Mr. 

Naman Jain has been associated with different business 
concern since the completion of his academic career. He is 
also director of PURSHOTTAM INVESTOFIN LIMITED, 
which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

Mr. Naman Jain is also the Director of several other 
Companies as per details given below:

Dr.  Shruti Jain: [07129355]

Dr. Shruti Jain is a graduate from Punjab University and has 
also completed her Master of Business Administration from 
most reputed The ICFAI University, Dehradun in the year 
2010. She has also completed Doctor of Philosophy in 
Management from Singhania University, Rajasthan. She 
belongs to the family having very successful business entity 
manufacturing Jai Bharat Saria.

Dr. Shruti Jain is highly qualified and having rich academic 
experience of Business Management and Administration. 
Her 

BBA (International 
Business, Finance & Economics) from Manchester (UK)

presence on the Board has been immensely beneficial 
to the Company keeping in view of her brilliant academic 
career and family background.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Third 
Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited 
financial statements for the financial year-ended 31st 
March, 2015.

OPERATIONS 

During the year under review, your Company has recorded 
revenue of ̀  29909.97 Lacs thereby showing an increase by 
0.71%. Because of the increase in revenues, PBT 
registered a significant growth and remain at ̀  292.80 Lacs. 
However, PAT showed a decline by 9.43%.

The financial year 2014-15 has been quite a successful year 
for the company as far as revenues are concerned. The 
increase in revenues showed rising demand for steel.  The 
factors which contributed for a better market for steel 
includes an estimated infrastructure investment of nearly a 
trillion dollars, a projected growth of manufacturing from 
current 8% to 11-12%, increase in urban population to 600 
million by 2030 from the current level of 400 million and 
emergence of the rural market.

DIVIDEND

Keeping in view the future fund requirements of the 
company for achieving the long term growth objectives, the 
Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend and 
transferred all the distributable profit to the general reserve 
account of the company.

Responsibility Statement:

The Directors confirm that:

► In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 
ended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed and that there are no 
material departures from the same,

► the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year as on 31st 
March, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for that 
period.

7
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S.No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

CIN/LLPIN

U27100DL2011PTC217911

U36996DL2007PTC159368

L65910DL1988PLC033799

U65921DL2010PLC209145

U51909DL2011PTC223304

AAA-8302

Name of the Company/ LLP

LUBOK INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED

LOIRE IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED

PURSHOTTAM INVESTOFIN LIMITED

Catalyst International Limited

IDREAMS IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED

LUBOK CARBON LLP

Particulars

Gross Sale

Profit before 
Depreciation 
interest and Tax

Interest

Depreciation

Profit/ (Loss) for 
the year before 
tax

Balance (Cr.) 
brought forward 
from the 
previous year

Balance (Cr.) 
carried forward 
to the Balance 
Sheet

2014-2015 2013-2014Sl. No. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Financial results:                       ` In lacs

29699.68

1047.08

605.45

157.00

284.63

1421.43

1641.16

29909.97

1046.11

600.76

152.55

292.80

1641.16

1831.48



► the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

► the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

► the Directors have laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

► the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Act, Mr. 
Puneet Jain, Director of the Company retire by rotation at the 
ensuing  Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible 
has offered himself for re-appointment.

Inductions:

During the year, the Board of Directors appointed Mrs. Shruti 
Jain as an Additional Director with effect from 20.03.2015, to 
hold office up to the date  of forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. Being eligible, Mrs. Shruti Jain offered herself to be 
appointed as the Independent Director of your company.

Board also appointed Mr. Naman Jain as a Non-executive, 
Additional Director, on the recommendation of nomination 
and remuneration committee, thus making total of 10 
members on the Board as on 31st March 2015, out of which 
5 are independent directors. The Company had received a 
notice in writing from a member along with a deposit of Rs 
100,000 (Rupees One lakh only) proposing the candidature 
of Mr. Naman Jain for the office of Director of the Company 
liable to retire by rotation.

The Board periodically reviews its composition for 
determining any change in the size and structure.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Independent Directors are required to be appointed for a 
term of five consecutive years, but shall be eligible for 
reappointment on passing of an ordinary resolution by the 
Company and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. All other 
Directors, except the Managing Director, will retire at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election.

The Independent Directors of your Company have given the 
certificate of independence to your Company stating that 
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The policy on Director's appointment and remuneration 
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of Director, and also remuneration 
for Key Managerial Personnel and other employees forms 
part of this Annual Report as Annexure-A.

The Company has formulated a policy for performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors.

AUDITORS

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. S. Singhal & Company, Chartered Accountants 
(ICAI Reg. No. 001526C) are proposed to be 
appointed as Auditors of the Company from the 
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held thereafter, subject to ratification of 
the appointment by the members at every AGM held 
after the ensuing AGM.

As required under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Company has obtained a written Consent 
from S. Singhal & Company, Chartered Accountants, 
to such appointment and also a certificate to the effect 
that their appointment, if made, would be in 
accordance with Section 141 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under, as may be 
applicable.

B. COST AUDITOR

The Board has appointed M/s Sanjay Garg & Co., 
Cost Accountants as cost auditors of the Company for 
the financial year 2015-16.

C. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s Bir Shankar & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretary was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company for the year 2014-15.

The Board has appointed M/s Bir Shankar & Co., 
Practising Company Secretary to conduct secretarial 
audit for the financial year 2015-16.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION

Your company is doing is best efforts to give high priority to 
energy conservation by opting for more power efficient 
replacements. 

Particulars of Energy Conservation/ Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange earnings and out go as per Section 
134(3)(m) of Companies Act, 2013 are given as an 
Annexure-B to this report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, a statement showing the remuneration and 
other details is being annexed to this report as Annexure-C

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with 
Stock Exchanges, the Management discussion and 
Analysis Report is enclosed as a separate part of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company is committed to adhere to the best practices 
of corporate governance requirements as set out under 
Clause 49 of the listing agreement. This is ensured by taking 
business decisions in conformity with ethical standards and 
conducting business

The report on corporate governance as stipulated under 
clause 49 of the listing agreement with the stock exchange 
forms an integral part to the Annual Report.

The certificate from the Auditors confirming compliance with 
the provisions of Corporate Governance has been attached 
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with the report on Corporate Governance

In terms of the Clause 49 of the listing Agreement a 
certificate of the CEO, inter alia, complying the correctness 
of the financial statements, adequacy of the internal control 
measures and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee in 
terms of the said clause, is also enclosed as a part of the 
report.

CONTRACTS/ ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit 
Committee for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval 
is obtained for Related Party Transactions on a quarterly 
basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature and / or 
entered in the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm's 
length. All Related Party Transactions entered during the 
year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm's 
Length basis. 

No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions 
exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover 
as per the last audited financial statements, were entered 
during the year by your Company. Accordingly, the 
disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under 
Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 
2 is not applicable.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met six times during the year, details of which are 
given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of this 
Annual Report. The gap between the meetings is as per the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is comprised of Independent Directors 
viz. Sh. T.C. Kansal, Sh. R.P. Bansal and Sh. Rajesh Kumar 
Pal as members. All recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee were accepted by the Board.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,  GUARANTEES,  
INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, guarantee or investments made by your 
Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the financial year 2014-15 are appended as 
Annexure-D to this Report

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declaration u/s 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from Independent Director confirming 
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism, 
incorporating a whistle blower policy in lines with the Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement in order to protect the interest of 
the employees and executives in reporting their grievances 
in a protected manner. It also provides for the protection 

against victimization of directors and employees who avail 
the mechanism and allows direct communication with the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, in certain exceptional 
circumstances. The policy on vigil mechanism may be 
a c c e s s e d  o n  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e  
www.ashianaispat.in/c orporategovernance/policies

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, extract of the Annual Return is being 
annexed with this Report as Annexure-E

AUDITORS' REPORT- OBSERVATION OF THE 
AUDITORS IN THE ANNUAL ACCOUNT

The observations of the Auditors in the Auditors' report on 
the accounts of the Company together with the Notes to 
Accounts are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for 
any further explanation, in the opinion of Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The secretarial audit report confirms that the Company has 
complied with all the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange and 
other necessary compliances under various Acts, in so far 
as applicable to the Company. The report does not contain 
any qualifications, reservation or adverse remark.

The secretarial audit report forms part of this report and 
attached as Annexure-F.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors would like to place their deep appreciation of 
the devoted services of the loyal workers, executives and 
other staff of the Company who have contributed in every 
possible measure towards consistent growth of the 
Company.  The Directors are also thankful to the Bankers- 
State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, investors, customers for 
their continued support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

For Ashiana Ispat Limited

(Naresh Chand) (Neeraj Kumar Jain)                                                                    

Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN : 00004500 DIN : 01335390

Place: Bhiwadi                                                                                                            

Date: 30.05.2015
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ANNEXURE-A

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

Remuneration to KMPs and Company’s employees is decided after considering the following factors: (i) Restrictions specified 
in various Acts like Companies Act, Income Tax. Etc. (ii) Market trend for remuneration paid for similar positions. (iii) 
Performance of the person in the Company. (iv) Profits of the company.

 The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 relating to the 
remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel, and other employees. As required by the rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the prescribed details are annexed to this report.

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

ANNEXURE-B

INFORMATION ON ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW

POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

ELECTRICITY

Purchase Unit (KWH) 30929961 29900499

CTD Section 12143230 12392994

Ingot Section 18786731 17507505

Total Amount 183641789 164331388

Consumption (Unit/MT)

CTD Section 173 174

Ingot Section 840 756

Own Generation NIL NIL

Through Diesel Generation NIL NIL

Through Steam Turbine NIL NIL

Coal

Purchased (Unit-MT) 9123.870 8685.075

Total Amount (in `) 83402366 72008580

Consumption (Unit/MT) 8949.955 9023.24

Furnace Oil

Purchased (Unit-KL) 0.000 0.000

Total Amount (in `) 0 0

Consumption (Unit/KL) 0.000 0.000

EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

` IN LACS

Capital NIL

Recurring NIL

Total NIL

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Details are given in Note 36 of Notes to Financial Statements
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2.40

ANNEXURE-C

1 (i) The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 (1) (i) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration) Rules, 2014 in respect of ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the Financial Year are as follows:

Note: For this purpose, sitting fees paid to the Directors have not been considered as remuneration. *MRE-Median 
Remuneration of Employee based on annualized salary

(ii) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was 0.51 lac p.a;

(iv) There were 117 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2015;

(v) Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance:- The following factors are 
considered while giving increase in the remuneration:

(a) Financial performance of the Company,

(b) Comparison with peer companies, and

(c) Industry benchmarking and consideration towards cost of living adjustment/ inflation.

(vi) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of the Company:- 
For the financial year 2014-15 Key Managerial Personnel were paid 30.47 % and 0.20 % of the net profit and 
turnover respectively of the Company.

(vii) The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the Executive Director and CEO is 
based on his performance and Company's performance

(viii) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year :- Not applicable; and

(ix) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and other employees.

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

(` in lacs)
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2 (i) Employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less than Rs.60 lac per annum.  
Nil

(ii) Employed for a part of the financial year and separated, were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less than 
Rs. 5 lac per month. Nil

ANNEXURE-D

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Amount outstanding as at 31st March, 2015

Particulars Amount in Lacs

Loans given 0.00

Guarantee given 0.00

Investments made 87.77

Loan, Guarantee and Investments made during the Financial Year 2014-15

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

Name of Entity Relation Amount in lacs Particulars of loan,
guarantee and
investments

Purpose for which
the loans,
guarantee and
investments are
proposed to be
utilzed

NIL
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ANNEXURE-E

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities 
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 

1.  CIN L27107RJ1992PLC006611 

2.  Registration Date 25/03/1992 

3.  Name of the Company ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED 

4.  Category/Sub/category of 

the Company 

PUBLIC COMPANY/ LIMITED BY SHARES 

5.  Address of the Registered 

office  & contact details 

A-1116, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, PHASE-III, BHIWADI-

301019, DIST- ALWAR (RAJASTHAN) 

6.  Whether listed company YES 

7.  Name, Address & contact 

details of the Registrar & 

Transfer Agent, if any. 

LINK INTIME INDIA PVT. LTD. 

44, Community Centre, Naraina Industrial Area, Phase-I, Near 

PVR Cinema, New Delhi-110028 

Ph: 011-41410592-94 

S. No. Name and Description of main 

products / services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 TMT BARS 27151 98.65   

2     

3     

S

N 

Name of 

Company 

Address 

 

 

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidi

ary/Associate 

% of shares held Applicable 

Section 

1 NA NA NA NA NA NA 

2        

3        
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13



IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 
Equity) Category-wise Share Holding

 
Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31/March/2014] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As 
on 31/March/2015] 

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share
s 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoter s

         
  

  
(1) Indian

     
 

 
a) Individual/ 

HUF 

261600

 

1330900

 

1592500

 

35.67

 

1402700

 

189800

 

1592500 35.67

b) Central Govt 0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

c) State Govt(s) 0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

d) Bodies Corp. 0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

40000

 

0

 

40000 0.9

e) Banks / FI 0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

f) Any other 0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter (A) 
261600

 

1330900

 

1592500

 

35.67

 

1442700

 

189800

 

1632500 36.56

  
     

B. Public 

Shareholding 

     

1. Institutions 
0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
a) Mutual Funds 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
b) Banks / FI 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
c) Central Govt 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
d) State Govt(s) 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
e) Venture 

Capital Funds 
0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0 0
f) Insurance 

Companies 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 h) Foreign 

Venture Capital 

Funds 

% 
Chang

e 
during

the 
year    

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (B)(1):-
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-

100.00

+2.52%

-

-

-

-
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SN Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shareholding 
during the 
year   No. of 

Shares 
% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered to 
total shares 

1 PUNEET JAIN 224600

 

5.03

 

0.00 224600

 

5.03

 

0.00 
2 UMA JAIN 94000

 

2.11

 

0.00 94000

 

2.11

 

0.00 
3 NARESH 

CHAND 220000
 

4.93
 

0.00 220000
 

4.93
 

0.00 
4 VANDANA 

JAIN 215690 4.83 0.00 215690  4.83  0.00 

2. Non-
Institutions       

a) Bodies Corp.       
i) Indian 

 544159
 
2800

 
546959

 
12.25

 
566241

 
2800

  
12.75

ii) Overseas 
      b) Individuals 

      i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh 

665970

 

1276735 

 

1942705

 

43.51

 

678703

 

1263235

 

1941938 43.49
ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

285880

 

77900 

 

363780

 

8.15

 

224362

 

77900

 

302262 6.77
c) Others 
(specify) 

      

Non Resident 
Indians 470

 

0

 

470

 

0.01

 

555

 

0

 

555 0.01
Overseas 
Corporate Bodies 

      

Foreign Nationals 

      

Clearing 
Members 100

 

0

 

100

 

0.00

 

200

 

0

 

200 0.00

Trusts/HUF 18286

 

0

 

18286

 

0.41

 

18304

 

0

 

18304 0.41
Foreign Bodies / 
D R 

      

Sub-total (B)(2):- 1514865

 

1357435

 

2872300

 

64.33

 

1488365

 

1343935

 

2832300 63.44

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 1514865 1357435 2872300 64.33 1488365 1343935 2832300 63.44

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 1776465 2688335 4464800 100

569041 +4.08%

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

-0.04%

-16.93%

-

-

-

-1.38%

-

-1.38%

    2931065 1533735 4464800 100 -

-  

-

 
-

 -
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5 NEERAJ 
KUMAR JAIN 221300 4.96 0.00 221300  4.96  0.00 

6 SUKHBIR 
SINGH JAIN 40000

 
0.90

 
0.00 0 0 0 

7 RENU JAIN 56000

 

1.25

 

0.00 56000

 

1.25

 

0.00 
8 

SANJAY JAIN 222500

 

4.98

 

0.00 262500 

                   
5.88 0.00 +18.07%

9 NARESH 
CHAND (HUF) 97410

 

2.18

 

0.00 97`410

 

2.18

 

0.00 
10 NEERAJ 

KUMAR JAIN 
& SONS HUF 100000

 

2.24

 

0.00 100000

 

2.24

 

0.00 
11 KRITIKA JAIN 100000 2.24 0.00 0 0 0 -100%

12 SWATI JAIN 1000 0.02 0.00 1000 0.02 0.00 
13 NAMAN JAIN 0 0 0 100000 2.24 0.00 

SN Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shareholding 
during the 
year   No. of 

Shares 
% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered to 
total shares 

    

-

SN Particulars Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year 1592500   35.67%   

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the year 

specifying the reasons for increase / 

decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / 

bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

 

   

 At the end of the year  1592500  35.67%   

C)    Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

-100%

-

-

-

-

+100%

Ashiana Fincap Private Limited acquired 
shares through secondary market.

0 0 40000 0.90%
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1632500  36.56%   

1632500  36.56%   
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D)    Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 

        (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

SN
For Each of the

Top 10 Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year [As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the end
of the year [As on 31-March-2015]

No. of Shares % of total Shares
of the Company

No. of Shares % of total Shares
of the Company

% Change
in share-
holding
during

the year

1. Shailendra Kumar Singhal 29812 0.67 34075 0.76 0.09

2. Ashiana Fincap Pvt. Ltd. 0 0.00 40000 0.90 0.90

3. Hem Securities Limited 23838 0.53 29922 0.67 0.14

4. Kamdhenu Steels & Alloys Limited 220273 4.93 220273 4.93 -

5. Kamdhenu Steels & Alloys Limited 53562 1.20 53562 1.20 -

6.  Ragini Singhal 29967 0.67 31317 0.70 0.03

7. Ramakant & Co. Pvt. Ltd. 28315 0.63 32275 0.72 0.09

8. Satyam Comex Pvt. Ltd. 144879 3.24 144879 3.24 -

9. Shree Giriraj Securities Pvt. Ltd. 13195 0.30 43195 0.96 0.66

10. Snehalatha Singhi 65864 1.48 65864 1.48 -

E)    Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Name                Shareholding Increase  / Decrease

 in Promoters Share

holding 

Reason Cumulative 

Share 

Holding 

As on 31-03- 

2015 

At the beginning 
 of the year
(01-04-2014) 

 

% of total 
 

shares 

    

1. 

Managing  
Director 

220000 4.93 Nil movement  220000 

2. 221300 4.96 Nil movement  221300 

3.       Sh. Puneet Jain

Executive 

Director 

224600 5.03 Nil movement  

Nil movement  

224600 

4.        222500 4.98 +40000 Transfer 262500 

5.      Sh. Naman Jain  

Non-Executive 
Director 

0 0.00 +100000 

6.      Sh. Tarachand

Kansal

Independent 

Director 

0 0.00

Sh. Sanjay
Kumar Jain
Executive 
Director

Sh.Neeraj
Kumar Jain
Executive 
Director

Sh. Naresh
Chand

Transfer 100000

0 0.00

Directors
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Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits 

Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

financial year   
  

    

I) Principal Amount  

ii) Interest due but not paid         

iii) Interest accrued but not due         

V)    INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued

        but not due for payment.

254356933 167764105 422121038-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

254356933 167764105 422121038-

32988939

232323973

---

221367994 -400088078
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Nil movement  

Nil movement  

Nil movement  

Nil movement  

Nil movement  

7.       Sh. Rajesh  

Kumar Pal

Independent 

Director 

0 0.00

8.      Sh. Rajinder

Parshad Bansal

Independent 

Director 

0 0.00

9.       Sh. Ram Kumar  

Garg 

Independent 

Director 

0 0.00

10.     Smt. Shruti  

Jain 

Independent 

Director 

0 0.00

11.     Sh. Harun Rashid

Ansari

Company

Secretary

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

Key Managerial Personnel

199335034

621456072

- -

- -

- -

221367994 -400088078 621456072

-
-
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VI.   REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

        A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

B. Remuneration to other directors

2 Other NonExecutive Directors           

Fee for attending board committee 

meetings           

Commission 
          Others, please specify           

Total (2)   

  Total (B)=(1+2)  12000 10000 12000 10500  44500 

Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
  Overall Ceiling as per the Act   

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -
- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

- - - - -

(` in lacs)

(Amount in `)

12000 10000 12000 10500  44500 
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN 

     MD/MANAGER/WTD

        

20,000 20,000--

20,000 20,000--

NIL
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--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -

--- -
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ANNEXURE-F

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
stFor The Financial Year Ended 31  March, 2015

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

To

The Members

M/s. Ashiana Ispat Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by M/s. Ashiana Ispat Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

We report that -

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the Company.

d) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

e) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, Its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 

stcompany has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31  March, 2015 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:

(II) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder:

(III) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(IV) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board India Act 
1992 (SEBI Act')-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities arid Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations 
and Guidelines, provisions of listing agreement to the extent applicable, as mentioned above except the copy of 
Limited Review Report sent to stock exchange.

(VI) The Company is in the business of manufacturing of Iron and steels- TMT Bar, Billet/ Ingot  for a vast variety 
of application. 

We have checked the compliance management system of the Company to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the adequacy of systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was 
done on test basis. We believe that tile Audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
explanations given to us, we believe that the compliance management system of the Company is adequate to 
ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable to the Company. 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

Adequate notices were given to all directors of the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has not bought back its equity shares and there were 
no instances of –

(i) Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity.

(ii) Redemption of securities.

(iii) Decisions by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Act.

(iv) Merger/ Amalgamation/Reconstruction.

(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

for Bir Shankar & Co.

Company Secretaries

Place: Delhi

Date: 30.05.2015 Sd/-

CS Bir Shankar

Proprietor 

C.P. No.7076

As informed to me the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under:

1. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

2. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

3. The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

4. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

5. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

6. The Factories Act, 1948

7. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

8. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

9. Legal Metrology Act, 2009

10. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

12. The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

13. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company's philosophy on code of corporate governance:

The company is committed to ensure high standards of transparency and accountability in all its activities. The best 

management practices and high levels of integrity in decision making are followed to ensure long term wealth 

generation and creation of value for all the stakeholders.

At Ashiana, Corporate Governance principles are enshrined by way of promoting and maintaining highest standards of 

integrity, transparency and accountability. It has become vital to retain the trust and confidence of stakeholders and 

customers. Your company strives to adopt the highest standards by not only adhering to the principles and provisions of 

Companies Act, 2015 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange but is also committed to sound 

Corporate Governance principles and practices and also keeps track of the best practices being followed worldwide.

Our Corporate governance practices are illustrated as follows:

2. Board of Directors:

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meetings. The Board has 

established various committees for effective discharge of its responsibilities.The Board consists of optimum no. of 

Independent Directors. The Board critically evaluates the Company's strategic direction, management policies and their 

effectiveness. The Board also review the related party transactions and other reports. The Board works in a harmonious 

fashion for achieving the long-term benefit to the Company and stakeholders.

(i) The Company has a balance mix of Executive and Non- Executive Directors. Composition and Category of 

Directors as of March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Size and category of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 10 Directors.

Composition and category of Director is as follows:

Executive Directors : Shri Naresh Chand

Shri Neeraj Kumar Jain

Shri Puneet Jain

Shri Sanjay Kumar Jain

Non-Executive Directors : Shri Naman Jain

Non-executive and Independent Directors     Shri Ram Kumar Garg

 Shri T.C. Kansal

Shri Rajinder Parshad Bansal

Shri Rajesh Kumar Pal

Mrs. Shruti Jain

The Board in consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee selects new Directors including Independent 

Directors. The Committee after considering qualifications, positive attributes, number of directorships and 

memberships held in various committees make recommendations for the selection of Directors. All independent 

directors possess the requisite qualifications and are very experienced in their own fields.

As per the current provisions of law, every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board where he participates 

as such director and thereafter at the first board meeting of every financial year, shall give a declaration of his 

independence as provided under law. Necessary disclosures have been obtained from all the directors regarding their 

directorship and have been taken on record by the Board.

(ii) Board Meetings, Attendance at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting, Outside 

Directorships and other Board Committees:

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees and chairman of more than 5 committees 
(as specified in the clause 49 of the listing agreement)
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* Since he was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f  14.11.2014

** Since she was appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f 20.03.2015

Familiarization program for Directors

All new Non-Executive Independent Directors induced to the Board are being exposed to the familiarization program to 
understand their role and responsibilities in clear terms and thus to discharge their liabilities in an efficient manner.

Also, the policy of separate meetings of independent directors also helps in achieving the goal of updating them with all 
recent business-related issues whereby the other executive directors throw light on relevant issues by sharing their 
views, opinions and expertise on those issues.

The familiarization program can be accessed on the company's website at www.ashianaispat.in/corporate 
governance/policies.

Evaluation of Directors

The Board in consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulates an evaluation program to analyze 
the performance of executive/non-executive/independent Directors through peer evaluation method, where by a 
Director is evaluated by all other Directors as against some performance indicators. The Board periodically evaluates 
the performance of Directors for identifying possible areas of improvement.

3. Number of Board meetings held and the date on which held

Generally, the Board meets once in every quarter to discuss about the quarterly results and other relevant items and also 
at the time of AGM of the shareholders. Additional Board meetings are convened as per the exigencies/ urgencies of 
business situations. 

Five Board meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2015, which were held on as follows; May 30, 2014, 
August 8, 2014, November 14, 2014, February 13, 2015, March 20, 2015.

The Board has unrestricted access to the company related information and the items/ matters which are generally 
placed before the Board include:

• Quarterly results of the company

• Company's Annual Financial results, Financial Statements, Report of Board and Auditors.

• Minutes of the meeting of Audit Committee and other committees of the Board.

• Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors.

• Disclosures of Director's interest and their shareholding.

• Appointment/ removal of KMPs, Internal and Secretarial Auditor

• Declaration of Independent Directors at the time  of appointment/ on annual basis

1. Mr. Naresh Chand 5 Yes 4 1 Executive 

2. Mr. Neeraj Kumar Jain 5 Yes 8 0 Executive 

3. Mr. Puneet Jain  5 Yes 4  0 Executive 

4. Mr. Sanjay Kumar  Jain 5 Yes 3  0 Executive  

5. Mr. Naman Jain 1 No* 6 0 Non-Executive Director 

5. Mr. Ram Kumar Garg 3 No 0  0 Non-executive and independent 

6. Mr. T. C. Kansal 5 Yes 1 3 Non-executive and independent 

7. Mr. Rajinder Parshad 

     Bansal 

5 Yes 1 3 Non-executive and independent 

8. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Pal 5 Yes 0 2 Non-executive  and independent 

10. Mrs. Shruti Jain 0 N.A** 1 0 Non-executive and independent 

No. of Board
 meetings 
attended 

during 
the year

Attendance
at previous

AGM on
30.09.2014

No. of 
other

Director
-ship(s)

 held

No. of
membership

/Chairmanship
 in Committees

Executive/Non-executive
/ Independent

Director
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• Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls

• Statement of significant related party transactions

• Borrowing of monies, giving guarantees or providing security

• Compliance Certificate(s)

The Chairman of the Board in consultation with the Company Secretary together finalize the agenda items for Board 
meetings.While preparing the agenda items and minutes of the meeting, all the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are being complied with by the Company Secretary.The agenda of the meeting along with the notice are 
circulated in advance to all the Directors for facilitating meaningful and focused discussion on the agenda items.

Meeting of Independent Directors

As per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Independent Directors are required to 
meet at least once during the year without the presence of other Executive Directors, for the purpose of reviewing the 
performance of Chairman, access the flow of information and to review the performance of other non-independent 
Directors. The meeting of Independent Directors took place on 25.02.2015 to discuss the various strategic issues 
relevant to the Company. The meeting ensures best corporate governance practices are being carried on and adhered 
to by the Company, which is in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

4.  Audit Committee:

The Audit committee comprises of 3 independent Directors as on March 31, 2015:- Mr. T.C. Kansal, Mr. R.P. Bansal and 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Pal, all being non- executive and independent Directors. Shri Md. Harun Rashid Ansari, Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the audit committee. The Committee is appointed in accordance with the terms of 
reference specified in writing by the Board. The Committee's constitution and terms of reference are in consonance with 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. All the members of the Committee have 
relevant working experience in financial matters.

Function of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company's is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the company's internal controls 
and financial process including:

♀ overseeing the company'sfinancial reporting process and disclosure of financial information with highest 
transparency

♀ recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and approval for payment of 
any other services

♀ reviewing with management the quarterly and annual financial results before submission to the Board;

♀ reviewing the adequacy of internal control systems with the management , external auditors and internal auditor

♀ discussion with external and internal auditors, before the audit commences, the nature and scope of audit as well 
as having post-audit discussions to ascertain areas of concern, if any.

♀ reviewing the appointment and removal of cost auditors.

♀ reviewing the matters to be included in the Board's report in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

♀ overview the compliance with listing agreement and other requirements w.r.t financial statements of the Company

♀ reviewing the auditor's independence.

♀ review and approval of significant related party transactions

♀ reviewing and performing such other functions as has been defined in the terms of reference

During the year, the committee has met Four times. Attendances of each member at the committee meeting were 
as follows:

SI. No. Name of the Members Status No. of Meeting attended

1. Mr. T.C. Kansal Chairman & Independent Director 4

2. Mr. R.P. Bansal Member &Independent Director 4

3. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Pal Member &Independent Director 4

5. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Board has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee consisting of Non-executive Independent 
Directors and its composition is in consonance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Nomination &Remuneration 
committee consists of 3 Non-executive Independent Directors viz. Sh.T.C Kansal, Sh. R.P. Bansal and Sh. Rajesh 
Kumar Pal, as on March 31, 2015. 

The purpose of the committee is to oversee the nomination process for top-level management and specifically to 
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identify, review individuals for serving as executive directors and independent directors. The Committee identify and 
selects persons who are qualified to become Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
The committee also recommends/ reviews to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel. 

It also advises in carrying out the evaluation program of each and every Director to ensure that the Board structure is 
composed of highly competitive and efficient personnel.

The attendance details of the meeting of the Committees are as follows:

SI. No. Name of the Members No. of meeting(s) held No. of Meeting attended

1. Mr. T.C. Kansal 1 1

2. Mr. R.P. Bansal 1 1

3. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Pal 1 1

Details of remuneration paid to Managing Director/ Whole time –Director are as follows:

Sh. Naresh Chand Managing Director Rs. 1,25,000/- p.m

Sh. Neeraj Kumar Jain Managing Director (Works) Rs. 1,20,000/- p.m

Sh. Puneet Jain Whole-time Director Rs. 1,20,000/- p.m

Sh. Sanjay Kumar Jain Whole-time Director Rs. 1,20,000/- p.m

Remuneration paid to non-executive directors:

No remuneration is paid to Non-executive Directors except sitting fees for attending the meeting of Board of Directors 
and committee thereof.

6. Stakeholders Relationship committee:

Stakeholders relationship committee is headed by Sh. Naresh Chand, Managing Director of the Company as chairman 
and comprises two other Directors Sh. T.C. Kansal and Sh. R.P. Bansal as members, as on March 31, 2015. The 
Committee's composition and terms of reference are in consonance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The committee overviews the case of transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, review the 
performance of the Registrar & Transfer Agents.

The Committee expressed satisfaction on Company's performance for redressing the investor's complaints received 
during the year.All complaints received from shareholders during the year have been readdressed.  No shareholders 
complaints were pending as on 31.03.2015.

Mr. Harun Rashid Ansari, Company Secretary has been appointed as a Compliance Officer to oversee the compliance 
with requisite Security Laws and Listing Agreement.

The attendance details of the meeting of the Committees are as follows:

SI. No. Name of the Members No. of meeting(s) held No. of Meeting attended

1. Mr. Naresh Chand 5 5

2. Mr. T.C. Kansal 5 5

3. Mr. R.P. Bansal 5 5

Details of Shareholders Complaints

Particulars No. of Complaints received No. of Complaints resolved

On receipt of shares lodged for transfer NIL NIL

Other ( non-receipt of Annual report etc. NIL NIL

Share Transfer/ Transmission Committee:

The Share Transfer / Transmission Committee is formed as per the requirement of relevant rules exclusively to look into 
share transfer and related applications received from shareholders, with a view to accelerate the transfer procedures.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil mechanism

The Company has established a well-defined vigil mechanism for addressing the grievances/unethical behavior by the 
employees and also to report prima facie violations of applicable laws. The aggrieved employee has direct access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

7. Code of Conduct for the Board members & Senior Management Team:

In compliance to Clause 49 of the Listing agreement and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the board has 
laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and senior management Team. The Code implies that Board of 
Directors effectively fulfils their fiduciary obligations towards the stakeholders and that the Board shall act on the 
principles of honesty, integrity, transparency and impartiality for effectively discharging their duty of protection of 
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interests of all stakeholders.

The Code of Conduct is also available on the Company's website  relations

8. General Body Meetings:

 The details of the last three Annual General meeting:

No resolution was required to be put through postal ballot. None of the business at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
is proposed to be passed by postal ballot

9. Disclosures

The related party transactions have been disclosed in Notes of Account forming part of the Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2015 and since the necessary disclosures were made in respect of the said 
transactions to the respective Boards of Directors, no transaction is considered to be in potential conflict with the 
interests of the company at large.

www.ashianaispat.in/Investor

The Non-ExecutiveDirectors had no pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the company during the year 
except receipt of sittingfee for attending the meetings of the Board/Committee.

There has not been any non-compliance, penalties or strictures imposed on the company by the Stock Exchange (s), 
Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets, 
during the last three years.

The Company has duly complied with all the mandatory clauses of the Listing Agreement.

10. Communication to the shareholders

The Company follows the practice of giving timely information on financial performance and other relevant information 
to the stakeholders and to all Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. The quarterly/annual 
financial results are published in the newspapers: The financial Express and Jansatta and also displayed on the 
Company's website.

The Company also maintains its official website www.ashianaispat.in wherein it maintains a separate and dedicated 
section called “Investor Relations” wherein it provides all the requisite information pertaining to shareholders.

Annual Reports in the downloadable format are also being provided for in the website and also regularly sent to the 
shareholders by e-mail, whose e-mail address are available with the Registrar & Transfer Agent and also sent by 
Registered post to those who have not provided their respective e-mail address or have requested the physical copy.

The printed copy of the Managing Director's Statement is distributed to shareholders at AGM.  Managing Director's 
Statement also forms the part of the Annual Report.

Moreover, the quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Results and other BSE Filings are also available on  the BSE website, 
www.bseindia.com in an electronic website, which can be accessed by providing the Scrip Code-513401 and can be 
downloaded .

The Company keeps regular track of the complaints of the investors through a user-friendly web based redressal forum-
SCORES and resolve complaints in the form of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) which can also be viewed by the 
complainant shareholder as well as the concerned Stock Exchange

The quarterly financial results during the financial year 2014-15 were published as follows:

Quarter Date of publication Name of Newspapers

Quarter ended 31.03.2014 May 31, 2014 The Financial Express

Jansatta

Quarter ended 30.06.2014 August 9, 2014 The Financial Express

Jansatta

Quarter ended 30.09.2014 November 15, 2014 The Financial Express

Jansatta

Quarter ended 31.12.2014 February 14, 2015 The Financial Express

Jansatta

Year

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

Location

A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, 

Bhiwadi-301019, Dist- Alwar-Rajasthan.

A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, 

Bhiwadi-301019, Dist- Alwar-Rajasthan.

A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, 

Bhiwadi-301019, Dist- Alwar-Rajasthan

Date

29.09.2012

30.09.2013

30.09.2014

Day

Saturday

Monday

Tuesday

Time

11.30 A.M

11.30 A.M

11.30 A.M
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Official news releases and notices etc. are sent to the Stock Exchange at Mumbai where shares of the company are 
listed.

11. General shareholders information:

(a) Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of Rajasthan with Corporate Identity No. (CIN) 
L27107RJ1992PLC006611.

(b) Annual General Meeting:

Date and time: 28th September 2015 at 09.30 A.M.

A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi-301019, Dist- Alwar-Rajasthan.

(c) Financial Calendar (tentative and subject to change)

Annual General Meeting :  28.09.2015, 09.30 A.M

Results for the quarter ending 30.06.2015 :  On or before August, 2015

Results for the quarter ending 30.09.2015 :  On or before November, 2015

Results for the quarter ending 31.12.2015 : On or before February, 2016

Results for the quarter ending 31.03.2016 :  On or before May, 2016

(c) Book Closure Date : 22.09.2015 to 28.09.2015

(d) Listing of Equity Shares : Mumbai (BSE)-Phiroze Jeejebhoy 
Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 
001

The Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2014-15 and 2015-16.

(e) Stock Market Data : Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
BSE Quote : (ASHISH) -513401

Month High Price Low Price

F.Y. – 2015-2015

Apr 14 8.55 7.95

May 14 10.00 7.60

Jun 14 14.10 9.97

Jul 14 15.79 10.69

Aug 14 16.15 13.60

Sep 14 18.10 13.61

Oct 14 16.00 10.00

Nov 14 17.82 11.55

Dec 14 18.90 13.05

Jan 15 15.70 11.92

Feb 15 13.45 10.53

Mar 15 11.92 9.70

(f) Status of dematerialization as on 31.03.2015

Particulars No. of shares % of capital

NSDL 2321056 51.99

CDSL 610009 13.66

Total Dematerialized 2931065 65.65

PHYSICAL 1533735 34.35

TOTAL 4464800 100.00

(g) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and : Link Intime India Private  Ltd.

44, Community Centre,2nd Floor, Naraina 
Industrial  Area, Phase-I, Near PVR Cinema, 
New Delhi-110028, Ph-011-41410592-
94

Share Transfer System:

The Board has delegated authority for approving transfer, transmission etc. of shares to the Stakeholder's 
Relationship Committee, who will approve the relevant transfers after being reviewed and approved by the 
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Company Secretary, and the same will be forwarded to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. The decisions of the 
committee will be considered in the Board Meeting.

The Company also obtained certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice w.r.t share transfer formalities under 
Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement and files the same with the Stock Exchange on half-yearly basis.

(h) Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2015

Sl. No. Category No. of shares Percentage

3 Foreign Institutional Investors/ NRIs 0 0

4 Others

(I) Distribution on shareholding as on 31.03.2015

Auditor's Certificate on Corporate Governance

As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Auditor's Certificate certifying the compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement forms part of this Report.

CEO/CFO certification’

The requisite certificate forms part of this Report in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The above report was adopted by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30.05.2015.

Declaration regarding compliance of code of conduct:

I, Naresh Chand, Managing director of Ashiana Ispat Limited hereby declare that all Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance of the code of conduct during the financial year ended 31.03.2015.

Place: Bhiwadi.

Date: 30.05.2015 Sd/-

(Naresh Chand)

Managing Director

DIN : 00004500

1 Promoters 1632500 36.56

2 Indian Financial Institutions, Banks, Mutual Funds 0 0

2832300 63.44

Total 4464800 100.00
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Shares holding
of nominal value
of Rs.
Up to 2500
2501-5000
5001-10000
10001-20000
20001-30000
30001-40000
40001-50000
50001-100000
100001 & above
Total

No. of
Shareholders

% of
shareholders

No. of Equity
shares

% of
shareholding

10223
418
182

76
17
11
11
9

28
10975

93.148
3.809
1.658
0.692
0.155
0.100
0.100
0.082
0.255

100.000

1369742
167984
154279
120603

42841
39839
51730
59914

2457868
4464800

30.679
3.762
3.455
2.701
0.960
0.892
1.159
1.342

55.050
100.000
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER 
CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENTS:

To

the Members of ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED 

We have examined the implementation of  conditions of  Corporate Governance by ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED (the company) 
during the year ended 31.03.2015, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the company, furnished to us for 
our review and the report on Corporate Governance as approved by the Board of Directors. 

The compliance of conditions on Corporate is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to review of 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

On the basis of our review and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the conditions of corporate 
Governance as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s) with the stock Exchange have been complied with in all 
material respect by the Company.

For S.Singal & Company

Chartered Accountants

(Registration No. 001526C)

Place: Bhiwadi

Date: 30.05.2015 Sd/-

(Rakesh Gupta)

Partner

M. No. 073846

CEO CERTIFICATION:

Managing Director and Director Finance & Accounts have certified to the Board that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2015 and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief:

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

(b) These statements together present in all material respects a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and/or applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the Company during the year, which 
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for internal controls for 
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to the financial reporting and that there have been no significant changes in internal controls. We have 
disclosed to the Company's auditors and the audit committee of the Company's Board thatthere are no deficiencies in 
the internal control and there have have been no material weaknesses in internal controls including any corrective 
action with regard to deficiencies.

4. We affirm that we have not denied access to the audit Committee by any personnel for reporting under Vigil Mechanism 
and has provided sufficient protection under it.

Place: Bhiwadi

Date: 30.05.2015 For and on behalf of the Board

For Ashiana Ispat Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

(Naresh Chand) (Naman Jain)

Managing Director Director

DIN  No. : 00004500 DIN  No. : 03436419
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

[A] FINANCIAL REVIEW

The global economy began its modest recovery in the FY 2014-15.  A combination of persistent inflation, fiscal 
imbalances and low investments resulted in sluggish domestic demand growth. 

Your Company registered a healthy performance during 2014-15. Although revenues have shown an increase by 
0.71%, but profitability margins have shown a slight decrease. EBDIT stood at Rs. 1046.11 Lacs. EPS for the year was 
recorded at 4.67 as compared to 5.16 in the previous year. Your Company's performance was driven primarily due to 
established network of dealer and distributor, better quality & realization value of the products and having prominent 
market share.

The Company's Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and guidelines issued by SEBI. Our management accepts 
responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements as well as for the estimates and judgment 
used therein. The estimates and judgment used have been made on reasonable basis so that the financial statements 
depict our state of affairs in a true and fair manner.

[B] INDUSTRIAL OUTLOOK

The steel industry reflects the overall economic growth of an economy in the long term as demand for steel is derived 
from other sectors like automobiles, consumer durables and infrastructure.

The Indian steel industry is very modern with state-of-the-art steel mills. From January-June 2014, India produced 41.28 
million tonnes (MT) steel, up 1.4 per cent over 40.72 MT in the year-ago period. India's finished steel production rose by 
a modest 4.4 per cent in June 2014 The production growth has remained subdued since the beginning of 2014-15. 
Meanwhile, The country produced 7.15 MT of steel in September 2014 as compared to 6.88 MT of steel produced in 
September 2013.

India produced 7.07 MT of steel in January 2015 reporting the fourth highest production level globally which was 1.7 per 
cent higher than the country's steel production in the same month last year.

A big challenge before the Indian Steel Industry is to sustain growth, avoid obsolescence of existing facilities and  
improve the newly adopted technologies.

[C] OPPORTUNITY, THREATS, RISK & CONCERN 

India has become the second best in terms of growth amongst the top ten steel producing countries in the world and a 
net exporter of steel during 2013–14. The liberalisation of the industrial policy and other government initiatives has given 
a definite impetus for entry, participation and growth of the private sector in the steel industry.

The country had consumed 18.69 MT steel in the April-June quarter of last fiscal. In recent months, the rate of growth in 
consumption was the fastest at 3.4 per cent in April. It was 0.3 per cent in May and 0.9 per cent in June. with per capita 
steel consumption of only 59 kg against a world average of 220 kg, there is a tremendous potential for increasing steel 
consumption in the country. With India placed favourably in the global cost curve, it is expected that India would also be 
exporting a substantial quantity of steel and would be a net exporter.

The Ministry of Steel is facilitating setting up of an industry driven Steel Research and Technology Mission of India 
(SRTMI) in association with the public and private sector steel companies to spearhead research and development 
activities in the iron and steel industry

The future of the Indian steel industry is bright. The government plans to increase infrastructure spending from the 
current 5 per cent GDP to 10 per cent by 2017, and the country is committed to investing US$ 1 trillion in infrastructure 
during the 12th Five-Year plan. With urban population increasing globally, there is a greater need for steel to build public-
transport infrastructure. 

Steel industry in India, still trails behind in several areas when compared with many other nations such as China, Japan, 
USA etc. in terms of efficiency, Research and Development(R&D), and technology development. Main problems relate 
to technological obsolescence in older plants and quality constraints of raw material. It is, therefore, imperative that the 
industry must resolve to change the scenario, by finding innovative solutions to the problems by pursuing relevant R&D 
for its long-term survival and growth. Increased cost of raw materials is also one of the biggest threat for the steel 
industry.

[D] OUTLOOK

Indian steel industry plays crucial role in development of nation and is considered as the backbone of civilization and the 
level of per capita consumption of steel is an important determinant of the socio-economic development of the country. 

India's steel demand is likely to rise by 4-5 per cent this year and will touch a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 
15 per cent after FY17. With expectations of the new government's thrust on jump starting stalled projects initially 
followed by pushing large flagship projects it is expected that India will begin moving back on the path of materials 
intensive growth by the end of this year

India is expected to become the world's second largest producer of crude steel in 2015-16, moving up from the fourth 

  ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITEDAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

31



position, as its capacity is projected to increase from 100 MT to about 112.5 MT in 2016. Also, India has set an output 
target of 300 MT of steel by 2025.

The infrastructure sector is India's largest steel consumer, thereby attracting investments from several global players. 
Owing to this connection with core infrastructure segments of the economy, the steel industry is of high priority right now. 
Also, steel demand is derived from other sectors like automobiles, consumer durables and infrastructure; therefore, its 
fortune is dependent on the growth of these user industries

However, as highlighted in the 12th plan Approach Paper, given the strong fundamentals the economy is very well 
placed to achieve a growth rate of 9% over the next five years.

Domestic steel producers will have to increase their focus on cost competitiveness and efficiency of operations to 
protect their margins.

[E] INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS& THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control procedures, commensurate with its size and nature 
of business, to achieve the following business objectives:

(i) protection of all assets and resources against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, 

(ii) that transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 

The internal control system provides for well- documented policies, guidelines, authorizations and approval procedures. 

[F] INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The industrial relations have been cordial and satisfactory.  The company feels that its employees feel valued and 
endeavours to create such working environment whereby each one would be able to deliver his best performance for 
attaining the objectives of the company. Our people are our most important assets. Competency development of our 
employees continues to be key area of strategic human resource development for us.  The strategic themes and 
business objectives are being revalidated by the Company periodically to incorporate the best corporate practices in our 
culture. 

[G] CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Facts and figure in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describe the company's views over iron and steel sector, 
projection and estimates may be “forward looking prediction” based on the national/ international prediction about the 
prospect of the iron and steel industry. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied, depending 
on the economic environment, government policies and other incidents.
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of

Ashiana Ispat Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ashiana Ispat Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to 
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material mis-statement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on whether the company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2015, and its profit 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements 
– Refer Note 33 to the financial statements;

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

III. There has been no such amounts, required to be transferred during the year , to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

Dated : 30.05.2015 For  S.Singhal & Co.

Place: Bhiwadi Chartered Accountants

(Registration No. 001526C)

(R.K.Gupta)

 PARTNER

M.No.073846

Annexure to Independent Auditors' Report

We give hereinafter a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of  Companies(Auditor's Report) Order, 2015,  
referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even 
date:

1. a. The company has maintained records of Fixed Assets in statement forms only.

b. According to the information & explanation given to us, the fixed assets has been physically verified by the 
management during the year in a phased periodical manner,  which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the company and the nature of the assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. a. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during 
the year.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical verification 
of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and 
the nature of its business.

c. In our opinion and according to information & explanation given to us, The Company has maintained proper 
records of inventories. As explained to us, there was no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to the book records.

3. In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the companies to the companies, firm or other parties covered 
in the registered maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,2013 :

a.) The period for repayment of loan and interest thereon both is at the discretion of the company.

b.) In respect of said loans and interest thereon, there are no overdue amount.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control 
systems commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and 
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing 
failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

5. In our opinion and  according to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not accepted deposits from 
public within the meaning of provision of Section 73 to  76 or  any other relevant provisions  of the Companies Act,2013 
and the Rules framed there under. Hene the provision of clause (V) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2015 is not applicable to the company.

6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the cost records have been maintained by 
the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rule, 2014 prescribed the central government under 
section 148 (1)  of the Companies Act 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have 
been made and maintained, however, we have not made a detailed examination of such cost records.

7. a. According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, Wealth-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory 
dues have been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities except for delays in some cases. 
According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the 
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March,2015 for a period of more than six months from the date of 
becoming payable.
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b. The disputed statutory dues aggregating to ` 210.9 Lacs  their against ` 170.96 Lacs has been deposited under 
protest on account of disputed matters pending before appropriate authorities as per details given below:

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no such amount  required transferred during the 
year to investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956 
and rules made there under.

8. The Company does not have accumulated Losses at the end of the financial year. The Company has not incurred any 
cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit or in the immediately preceding financial year.

9. Based on our audit procedure and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that 
the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institution or banks. The company has not issued any 
debenture.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by 
others from banks or financial institutions.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, and record examined by us the company has taken Car Loan 
during during the year. The same has been applied for the respective purpose.

12. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed and reported 
during the year.

For S.SINGHAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Reg No.001526C)

Date: 30.05.2015

Place: Bhiwadi

(R.K.Gupta)

PARTNER

M.No 073846

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of the 
Dues 

Period to which the 
amount relates 

Amount  
(` in Lacs) Forum where Dispute is pending 

Income Tax Act Income Tax 
Matters 

 A.Y. 2010-11
 2011-12,2012-13 171.33 C I T ( Appeals),Jaipur     

Central Excise 
Act & Finance 

Act 

Central Excise 
Duty  

 

F.Y. 2001-02 1.02 High Court of Rajasthan- Jaipur 

Service tax F.Y. 2008-09 38.55 CESTAT- Delhi 
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DIN : 00004500 DIN : 01335390

ACS : 11147 DIN : 00814312
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Significant Accounting policies
1 Basis of Accounting

Financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles and to comply with Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable.

2 Use of Estimates
The Preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported 
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.

3 System of Accounting
The Company adopts the accrual basis in the preparation of accounts

4 Fixed Asset
(a) Fixed Asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of assets comprises of purchase 

price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use including 
borrowing cost.

(b) Expenditure on renovation/ modernization relating to existing fixed assets is added to the cost of such 
assets where it increases its performance / life significantly.

5 Investment
Investment are carried at cost. Profit or loss, if any would be accounted for on actual realization.

6 Inventories Valuation
(a) Raw Material , Stock in- Process and stores and spares and Traded Goods are valued at cost.
(b) Waste and Scrap & Runner / Risers are valued at  realizable value. 
(c) Finished Goods are valued at cost or market  price  whichever is  less.

The Value of finished goods is included excise duty as applicable on the closing stock.
7 Depreciation

(a) Cost of Lease Hold Land is not amortized since Lease is for a Long Period.
(b) Depreciation on fixed assets upto 31.03.2014, is provided for on the straight-line method in the manner and 

at the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act,1956.Effective from 01.04.2014, 
depreciation is charged on SLM method on the basis of useful life of the fixed assets. The Company has 
adopted useful life of fixed assets as given in Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
all fixed assets. 

8 Sale / Revenue Recognition
(a ) Sales are net of Sales tax and sales returns. Revenue from sales is recognized when risk and reward of 

ownership are transferred to the customers.
(b) Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis.
( c ) Other Revenue Income are recognised as and when accured to the Company.

9 Impairment of Assets
There are no indication of overall impairment in assets hence the need to make an estimation of re-coverable 
amount does not arise.

10 Employee Retirement Benefit
(i) Company’s  contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are charged to Statement of 

Profit & Loss.
(ii) Liability on account of gratuity and leave encashment are provided for on the basis of acturial  valuation 

made at the end of each financial year.
11 Provisions for Current and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between book profit and taxable profit is 
accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the date of 
balance sheet. The deferred tax assets is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a 
reasonable certainty that the same will be realized in future.

DIN : 00004500 DIN : 01335390

ACS : 11147 DIN : 00814312
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AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE

The   above Cash   Flow  Statement   has   been   compiled   from    and   is   based   on    the audited   
accounts   of  ASHIANA  ISPAT  LIMITED   for   the   year   ended  31st  March, 2015 reported     upon     by    
us    on   30th May  2015.   According    to     the   informations    and  explanations    given,   the    aforesaid    
Cash   Flow   Statement   has   been     prepared     in accordance   with    Clause   32   of   the  Listing  
Agreement   and   reallocations   required   for the  purpose  are  as  made  by  the  Company.

For S. Singhal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

( R. K.  Gupta )

    Partner

M.S. No. 073846

Place : Bhiwadi

Date:- 30th May 2015
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Note 30 Segment Reporting

The Company is manufacturing TMT Bars and Ingots, but M.S. Ingots is used as raw material of TMT Bars I.e. captively 
consumed, as both the product are inter related cover in single segment of Iron & Steel. Hence, Accounting Standard -17 
"Segment Reporting" issued by ICAI  is not applicable on the Company.

Note 31 Provisions for Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities in accordance with the AS-22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income"  issued by the Council of 
ICAI.The major component of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31st March 2015 subject to the consideration 
of prudency of timing differences are shown in note no 4.

Note 32 The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the micro, small and medium 2006 and 
hence disclosures enterprises development Act,  relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest 
paid/payable under this Act, have not been given.

Note 33 Contingent Liabilities : Claims against the company / disputed demands not acknowledged as debts.

Provisions invlolving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a 
result of past event and it is pobable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are 
disclosed in the notes as given below:-

Amount in `

0

2074825126

0

23946090

Percentage

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

Amount in `

0

2052517073

0

27454672

Percentage

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%
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ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED

Regd Office : A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)

ASHIANA ISPAT LIMITED

Regd Office : A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)

23rd Monday, the 28th September, 2015 at 09.30 A.M.

at A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019

Monday, the 28th September,
2015 at 09.30 A.M. at A-1116, Phase-III, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019 or any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Puneet Jain (holding DIN – 00814312), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Mr. Naman Jain as Director liable to retire by rotation

To Consider the appointment of M/s. S.Singhal & Co. as Statutory Auditors.

Appointment of Mrs. Shruti Jain as an Independent Director for a term of five years

To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2016
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AGAINST FOR

CIN : L27107RJ1992PLC006611 

CIN : L27107RJ1992PLC006611 

Ashiana Ispat Limited hereby appoint:
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